ALASKA STATE LEQ SLATURE
HOUSE SPECI AL COW TTEE ON FI SHERI ES
March 1, 2004
9:05 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Paul Seaton, Chair
Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Vice Chair
Representative Cheryll Heinze
Representati ve Dan Ogg

Represent ati ve Ral ph Sanuel s
Representative Les Gara

Representative David CGuttenberg

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR
HOUSE BI LL NO 478
"An Act relating to the issuance of commercial fishing interim
use permts; and providing for an effective date.”
- MOVED CSHB 478(FSH) OUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 478

SHORT TITLE: COMMVERCI AL FI SHI NG | NTERI M USE PERM TS
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) W LSON

02/ 16/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 16/ 04 (H) FSH, RES

02/ 27/ 04 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 27/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

02/ 27/ 04 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 01/ 04 (H) FSH AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

JON GOLTZ, Assistant Attorney General
Nat ural Resources Section

Civil Division (Anchorage)

Departnent of Law

Anchor age, Al aska

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -1- March 1, 2004



POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Di scussed the possibility of anmending
HB 478 with regard to landings from international waters and
retroactivity; answered questions.

FRANK M HOVAN, Commi ssi oner

Commerci al Fisheries Entry Conm ssion

Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane ( ADF&G

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: During hearing on HB 478, answered
guestions about the history of limted entry and interimuse
permts; said CFEC supports HB 478 to clarify that its practice
for 30 years is what the | egislature intended.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-13, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAIR PAUL SEATON called the House Special Commttee on
Fisheries neeting to order at 9:05 a.m Representatives Seaton
Wl son, Sanuels, CGuttenberg, and Gara were present at the call
to order. Representatives Heinze and Ogg arrived as the neeting
was in progress.

HB 478- COVMERCI AL FI SHI NG | NTERI M USE PERM TS

[ Cont ai ns di scussion of HB 415 at the end of the hearing]
Nunmber 0041

CHAI R SEATON announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 478, "An Act relating to the issuance of
commercial fishing interimuse pernmts; and providing for an
effective date."

CHAI R SEATON asked M. Goltz whether he had anything to add to
his e-mail of February 27, 2004.

Number 0088

JON GOLTZ, Assistant Attorney Ceneral, Nat ur al Resour ces
Section, Gvil Division (Anchorage), Departnment of Law, said he
could add a little. Noting that he'd been asked to do sone
analyses as to whether any anendnents to the bill would be

desirable to address |l andings frominternational waters, he said
there is sonme uncertainty now about how CFEC s laws apply to
such situations. He opined that the bill helps a little by

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 2- March 1, 2004



closing a potential gap between when entry permts are issued
and when [interimuse] permts are issued, and by clarifying
CFEC s authority to issue these permts.

MR. GOLTZ said there still could be a question in sonme cases

however, as to what CFEC can designate as a fishery; he cited
the exanple of a tuna fishery off the <coast of Hawaii.
Suggesting those m ght be broader issues, he said he didn't have
a clear picture about what could be changed in this bill to
further clarify the issue of international |andings wthout
significantly changing the real purpose and focus of the bill

Number 0278

MR. GOLTZ turned attention to retroactivity, noting that he'd
al so been asked to look into the possibility of making the bil
retroactive to the date of the original limted entry
| egislation. Although it raises some |legal issues, he said it's
uncertain how those issues would be applied to the particular
court cases that are ongoing and relevant to this issue. As a
relatively mnor first point, he suggested that if the
| egislature intends to make this bill retroactive in order to
extinguish current clains for reinbursenent of past fees paid
then the bill should expressly say that in order to conply with
exi sting AS 01.10. 100.

MVR. GOLTZ addr essed t he bi gger i ssues rel ating to
constitutionality. As the person charged with advocating for
the state both in the [State v. Dupier Al aska Suprene Court]
crimnal case and the Sargent and Dupier class action cases
currently in court, M. Goltz said he'd be pleased to see the

bill applied retroactively because it would give him additiona
argunents in those cases, although he wasn't sure how such
argunents would fare. Most inportant, it would allow him to

show that this |egislature supports CFEC s | ongstanding practice
in issuing permts in the halibut fishery and other fisheries
that aren't |imted. It would also allow himto argue that the
intent and purpose of the bill is nerely curative, he said, to
val i date that |ongstanding practice of issuing permts under the
current law, and to argue that the practice is consistent with
what the intent of the | aw has been all al ong.

Number 0473
MR, GOLTZ acknow edged that in making those argunents, he'd

expect sonme opposition; in the crimnal case, the opposition
would largely be the <contention that applying this bil

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 3- March 1, 2004



retroactively would violate the ex post facto prohibitions in
the federal constitution. He said he wasn't sure how that issue

woul d play out because the bill doesn't create a new prohibition
or penalty that is applied retroactively, but sinply clarifies
the scope of the interimuse permt. He suggested it's an issue

that ultimately woul d best be resolved by a court.
Nunber 0521
MR. GOLTZ went on to say in the civil cases, it could be argued

that the plaintiffs already have a right to reinbursenent for
those «clains and that any legislation which retroactive

elimnates those claim would allegedly violate due process. He
said, again, it isn't clear to himhow it would be resolved, but
he thinks he could nmake a strong argunment that if the bill is
applied retroactively, it is sinmply a clarification or
expression of intent about the scope of the original law, not a
retroactive application of "a substantive law ... or one that

woul d viol ate due process in that case.”
Number 0580

MR GOLTZ addressed a final possible issue relating to
separation of powers. He explained that a court mght be
concerned that by clarifying this law while cases are ongoing,
the legislature is stepping into a judicial role of interpreting
the law and how it should apply to particular cases. Wil e he
said there would be strong argunents against that, he cautioned
that it's a potential issue when tal king about changing the |aw
in the context of cases that already have had rulings and that
wi |l have further rulings before they reach a final resolution.

MR, GOLTZ summarized by saying it isn't clear to him that a
retroactive application would solve the ongoing cases.
Practically speaking, he suggested it would probably conplicate
the cases because of raising constitutional issues. He added:

But speaking as an advocate, as | have been here, a
retroactive bill would give ne new argunents to nake
on behalf of the state's position, and ... from that
point of view, | can't see any harm that would be nade
to the state's case. ... In the event that a court
f ound t hat t he law  should not be applied

retroactively, due to constitutional concerns, I
believe the result would sinply be that the court
woul d decline to apply it retroactively, and sinply

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -4- March 1, 2004



hold ... that - in that particular case, anyway - the
new | aw has only prospective application.

MR. GOLTZ cl osed by enphasizing the difficulty of predicting how
t hose i ssues woul d be deci ded.

Nunber 0728

CHAI R SEATON asked whether the ongoing crimnal case involves
sonmeone who failed to get a permt.

MR. GOLTZ replied that it involves three individuals; all caught
hal i but outside of state waters and brought the halibut inside
of state waters for |anding. None had an interimuse permt
from CFEC, and they were cited for not having interimuse
permts.

CHAIR SEATON asked whet her it's a fair readi ng that
retroactively allowing CFEC to issue permts wouldn't inpact the
defendants in this case as to whether they were required to have
a permt.

MR. GOLTZ said he thinks it's a fair reading, but isn't the only
readi ng. He expl ai ned:

The rub cones in because the way the court of appeals
decided those cases is ... that those defendants
couldn't be required to have a permt because, in
fact, the CFEC didn't have the authority to issue them
one in that case. And so ... the reasoning about
whet her or not they are going to be ... convicted on
the charge of not having a permt does hinge on
whether the CFEC had the authority to issue them a
permt.

Nunmber 0872

CHAI R SEATON asked whet her, before 1972, fishermen were required
to have a gear permt card for any fishery in which they
oper at ed.

MR. GOLTZ said he believed so. |In further response, he said:

My understanding of the legislative history there is

that the gear card requirenent continued until 1977
So for the period between '73 and '77, fishermen were
required to have both a limted entry ... interimuse

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 5- March 1, 2004



permt and also a gear card for whatever gear they

wer e usi ng. In "77 the legislature deened that to be

an unnecessary, duplicative licensing requirenent and

dropped the gear license card statute, in reliance on
the CFEC permts.

Nunber 0978

MR GOLTZ, in further response to Chair Seaton, noted that in
the civil [class action] cases, the argunent is specific to
hal i but, kind of an unusual fishery because federal law, to a
| arge degree, preenpts state nmanagenent of it. The argunent
essentially is that in light of the recent court of appeals

decision - which held that CFEC doesn't have authority to issue
interimuse permts in the halibut fishery because limted entry
is not pending - the people who bought a halibut interimuse
permt should be able to get that noney back fromthe state. In
response to a further question, he offered his belief that in
both cases, the class [of plaintiffs] is limted to persons who
caught halibut in the EEZ [Exclusive Econom c Zone] outside of
state waters and brought them in. He said he isn't entirely
sure whether it (indisc.--coughing) the case, but it is only
hal i but fi shernen.

Number 1135

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whether there was any danger that
telling the courts what a prior legislature intended would
expose the state to additional liability in any of these cases.

MR, GOLTZ replied that he hadn't been able to think of any way
in which that would create additional liability. He
acknowl edged that he'd only been working on the issue of
retroactivity for a few days. He added:

What |'ve been able to discern from ny reading on the
issue is that to the extent retroactivity proved to be
a problemin the court's view, ... it would only speak

to whether or not the court would actually apply the
statute retroactively in that particular case. ... |
am not aware of a situation where this could create
liability.

Number 1220

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked, if the legislature says CFEC shoul d
have issued permts that it hasn't been issuing, whether it's

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 6- March 1, 2004



possi ble soneone could claim entitlenent to a permt that
historically CFEC hasn't issued and claim damages for not being
issued a permt that [CFEC] wasn't issuing.

MR, GOLTZ replied that he doesn't see that situation here
because, as he sees the bill, it is intended nerely to validate
and conformthe law to CFEC s actual practice for 30 years, and
to interpret the statute broadly to say, essentially, that
[CFEC] has authority to issue interimuse pernmts in every
fishery that doesn't have a maxi num nunber and so doesn't have
entry permts issued for it.

Number 1323

REPRESENTATI VE  GARA expressed skepticism that this 2004
| egi slature, by saying what a prior legislature intended, wl

be given nmuch weight by the courts in that interpretation. He
surmsed that the court would say it could figure out the prior
| egislature's intention equally well. He asked for M. Coltz's

vi ew on that.

MR. GOLTZ agreed that the foregoing has "a fair bit of weight to
it" and that the court would certainly consider that view of the
case. He pointed out that this is a bit awkward for him since
he's still in a position of advocating in these particular
cases.

MR GOLTZ, in reply to a question from Representative WIson,
said he doesn't see a significant downside in relation to the
cases he's involved with if the bill is retroactive. Al t hough
it would allow himto nake sone argunents in the state's favor
that he otherwi se wouldn't be able to nmake, it raises issues and
he isn't sure the bill would, in fact, be applied retroactively
by a court in those particul ar cases.

Nunber 1472

CHAI R SEATON said he's not so concerned about the pending cases,
but would be concerned about expanding that to all other
nonlimted fisheries. He asked, if a retroactive date is

i ncl uded now, whether it would have nore influence on potenti al

cases that haven't yet been filed, for all other fisheries that
were interimuse permt fisheries, regardless of whether they
i npact the current cases.

MR, GOLTZ said he didn't have a conprehensive understandi ng of
the answer, but essentially believes it won't hurt. | f soneone

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -7- March 1, 2004



could file a claim now but hasn't, he believes that's a
significant question that would have to be argued in the context

of a particular case before a court. He offered his view that
the effect of retroactivity in [HB 478 wuld be this
| egislature's statenment of intent, in as strong terns as

possi ble, that CFEC s past practice has been the appropriate
one. He said he doesn't know that nmuch can be done beyond that.

CHAIR SEATON requested confirmation that this legislation
doesn't affect any fishery that would have been actively
undergoi ng the process of limted entry.

MR. GOLTZ said he believes that's correct.
Nunmber 1659

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether the policies and
procedures for issuing these interimuse permts have been
consi stent, and whet her passage of this |egislation would cover
all past instances or if would there be different categories or
tinmelines for regul ations.

MR, GOLTZ said he thinks the answer is yes. He noted that CFEC
has issued interimuse permts for different fisheries at
different times, as they have evolved, and that the process has
devel oped; he suggested a CFEC commissioner may be able to
di scuss how that process has devel oped. Ofering his belief
that this bill would relate to those all equally, he said he
keeps comng back to CFEC s hope of conformng the statutory
| anguage a little nore clearly to the actual interpretation and

practice all along. "We're not, in the view of the CFEC
changi ng anything here," he said. "This has been the l|law the
entire tine. And we only need to make it even nore clear now

because of the decision we originally got from the court of
appeal s. "

CHAI R SEATON acknow edged that Representatives Heinze and Ogg
had arrived shortly after the hearing began.

Nunber 1847

FRANK M HOVAN, Comm ssi oner, Commer ci al Fisheries Entry
Comm ssion, Alaska Departnment of Fish & Gane (ADF&(G, addressed
Representative (QGuttenberg's question by saying interimuse
permts have been issued from the very beginning, going back to
probably 1974. The comm ssion has always issued two types of
permts: the entry permt and, for all those fisheries that

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 8- March 1, 2004



were not limted, the interimuse permt. Over the years, as
new fisheries have been limted, CFEC has switched from an
interimuse permt for that fishery to an entry permt.

CHAI R SEATON asked about the relationship between the gear
permts that were issued and the interimuse or entry permts.

MR. HOVAN answer ed:

"1l try to go back that far. ... | think what
happened was, in the early years of the conmm ssion,
the carryover of the gear license cane from pre-
limted entry days, and ... it was always the type of
permt that was issued ... for fishernen. After

limted entry, that continued to be issued, but we
al so began issuing an interimuse permt and an entry
permt. ... This happened for three or four years,
until 1977, when ... the situation arose that "why
were we issuing these two types of cards, when ... the
interimuse permt or the entry perm t could
substitute for the gear permt." So ... they swtched
at that tinme and said ... that the interimuse permt
and the entry permt would cover a gear |license. And
so, | guess, from 1977 ... the state hasn't issued a
gear |icense.

Number 1991

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether a retroactive date in the
bill would be back to 1974 or 1977.

MR. HOMAN said he believed 1974, when [CFEC] first started
issuing interimuse permts.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked how much noney is at stake if there

is a class action lawsuit over this, and whether the departnent
had consi dered this.

MR HOVAN indicated it hadn't been considered, but said there
are probably thousands of permts.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON asked whether it would be nore than for
the Carl son case.

MR. HOVAN said he couldn't guess, but it would be substanti al

Number 2055

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 9- March 1, 2004



CHAI R SEATON offered his belief that the crimnal case before
the court, which only involves three people, has nothing to do
with the purpose of a retroactivity clause here. The ot her
woul d probably only apply to halibut when it went to individua
fishery quotas (IFQ), he suggested, because that's when the
federal government first started issuing a federal card for
delivery of fish; before that, they were delivered under a state
"gear interimuse card." He nentioned 1996 as a possible date
when it becane effective, not when it was passed.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG recalled that previous to that, the federa
government issued permts for halibut, both sport-charter cards
and conmerci al cards.

CHAI R SEATON said before that, delivery was nmade on the state
card, even though there was a federal fishery permt.

Number 2143

CHAI R HEI NZE asked how many fisheries aren't subject to limted
entry or a noratorium

MR, HOMAN said it's hard to answer because sone fisheries have
no activity, but [CFEC] has limted approximately 66 or 67
fisheries, and probably another 125 or nore have been identified
that aren't limted. The majority of the major fisheries I|ike
the salnmon fisheries are limted, but there are a lot of
m scel | aneous fish and crab that haven't been limted.

CHAIR HEINZE requested confirmation that these permts help
[CFEC] in tracking the healthiness of the fish stocks.

MR. HOVAN said absolutely; that's where all the data cones from
Because of the permt system and the requirenent that the fish
tickets contain the permt nunber, how the resource is faring
under the fishery can be determ ned. It's the basic tool used
by ADF&G and CFEC to assess the fishery.

Nunber 2238

CHAI R HEI NZE asked whether [CFEC] is looking at permtting for
the 125 or so fisheries that aren't limted now.

MR. HOMAN answered yes, saying it's through the interimuse

permt systemfor all those nonlimted fisheries. The sane data
is collected fromthe nonlimted fisheries.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -10- March 1, 2004



CHAI R SEATON requested confirmation that prior to limted entry,
gear cards were used to track the fisheries resources.

MR. HOVAN said that's correct.
Nunmber 2291
REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whet her CFEC supports HB 478.

MR. HOVAN answered that [CFEC] definitely supports it, to
clarify that its practice for 30 years is what the |egislature
i nt ended.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA, noting that he is an attorney but still
doesn't wunderstand them fully, requested an explanation of the
class action clains that this bill, if applied retroactively,
m ght inpact, and how it would benefit the plaintiffs.

MR. HOVAN, noting that he hasn't gone into the issue a lot, said
the claim was that CFEC didn't have authority to issue |UPs
[interimuse permts] that it had issued in the halibut fishery,
because it didn't have the ability to limt that fishery.
Surm sing that they were seeking their noney back, he said there
are five fee classes, ranging, to his belief, from $60 to $300.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whether their position was that they
shoul d have been able to engage in the fishery for free, wthout
the permts, and that CFEC, by charging noney for permts, had
exceeded its authority.

MR HOVAN deferred to M. Goltz, but said he believes that's the
basic claim

Nunber 2440

MR. GOLTZ said he basically agreed with M. Homan's answers.
Noting the approximately 3,000 halibut permts in Al aska, he
said the alleged class, not yet certified by the court, consists
of persons who caught fish only outside of state waters and

| anded them in state waters. He explained, "W don't know
exactly how many people that is, because we believe nost people
catch halibut both inside and outside of state waters." He said

the claimis that these persons conplied with the law and the
practice of purchasing an interimuse permt for halibut from
CFEC in order to catch fish in state waters or to authorize the

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -11- March 1, 2004



| anding and selling of their fish in state waters, in conpliance
with state statutes.

MR. GOLTZ continued, saying [the plaintiffs'] argunent is that
they shouldn't have had to conply with that |aw, because the
court of appeals has now held that CFEC didn't have authority to
issue them an interimuse permt. Thus they're seeking
rei mbursenent of the noney paid, although to the best of his
know edge they didn't protest paying it at the tine. He said he
believes for nost of the tinme period in question, approximtely
1996 through 2003, the fee was either $50 for a resident or $150
for a nonresident for an interimuse permt for halibut.

Number 2531

REPRESENTATI VE GARA related his understanding, then, that the
plaintiffs claim first, that CFEC had no authority to issue the
permts, and, second, that they should have been able to engage
in the fishery for free, without a permt.

MR, GOLTZ clarified that the pleadings don't allege that second
part, but said he thinks it's an inherent part of their claim
"and is sonething that we hope to point out in the litigation."

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked whether these clainms just apply to
interimuse permts for the halibut fishery beyond the three-
mle limt.

MR GOLTZ said he's alnost positive that's the only thing
alleged in the pleadings, but indicated he'd have to check. He
added that he thinks the people who are alleging to be part of
this class only allege that they are persons who have harvested
hal i but outside of state waters, beyond the three-mle limt,
but have brought the halibut into state waters for | anding. In
that circunstance, state law requires that the person have a
halibut interimuse permt. One reason is to pronote
enforcenment, he said, since halibut obviously are available in
state waters and it wouldn't be clear whether they'd been
harvested inside or outside of state waters. Thus the |aw
requires a person to have a permt anytine he/she possesses
hal i but for comrercial purposes inside of state waters or is
| andi ng, delivering, or selling them

Number 2640

CHAI R SEATON, noting that he is a halibut fisherman, offered the
following clarification. He said things have gotten conplicated

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -12- March 1, 2004



because of the federal |IFQ program which issues a federal card.
When a person delivers halibut, a nmachine |ike an ATM [ aut onmat ed
teller machine] tells how many pounds that person has avail abl e,
and there is a printout of how many pounds have been delivered
and so forth. Since halibut is the only fishery controlled by
international treaty, the state doesn't really manage it wthin
state waters; the fishery goes from the shoreline out to 200
mles, and the federal governnment, through the halibut treaty,
manages it.

CHAI R SEATON, enphasizing the duality of the system explained
that a person al so nust have an entry-permt card, which is used
to stanp the fish ticket; this [provides data on] what size of
fish were caught and so forth. The biological information is
only recorded on the state fish ticket, whereas the federal
permt records how many pounds have been delivered and how many
remain to be caught that year. He suggested that's the reason
for the confusion: people who had the plastic card from the
federal governnment thought they didn't need one from the state
anynore, and yet the state card is needed for a fish ticket in
order to deliver fish wwthin the state. He continued:

That fishery alone is segregated. And as I'm
understanding it, it's not even the |IFQ fisheries
t oget her, because there's a sablefish [fishery], which
is not under international treaty. You still have a
card, but ... the state manages sablefish within state
waters. ... It's a very conplex situation

The big thing that we need the clarification for 1is
that the state has the authority to issue interinmuse
permts for fisheries which are not currently pending
for limted entry. And that's the big question here.
And | don't really see it as a question because | see
the interimuse card as the replacenent for the gear
card to give us tracking of fish and our fisheries
resource. And if we didn't have that, we would be
sitting out here nmanaging fisheries without ... any
data or information.

MR. HOVAN, in response to Chair Seaton, indicated he had nothing
to add and comrended him for the foregoing explanati on.

Number 2804

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -13- March 1, 2004



REPRESENTATIVE OGG told M. Goltz he appreciated the clarity and
research. He asked what the ballpark figure is for the total
liability in the civil [class action suits].

MR, GOLTZ replied that it isn't known yet, because it isn't

known how big that class is. "If the cases do go forward, we're
going to have to do sone discovery to find out who needs to be
in that class,” he added. Wth regard to the Carlson case
mentioned earlier, he said he didn't believe it was close to
that, but reiterated that it's undeterm ned yet. Expr essi ng
hope that that the cases wouldn't go forward, he explained, "If
we can prevail in the suprenme court on the crimnal action
that's currently pending, | think ... that the wind wll be
taken out of the sails eventually ... of the civil clains,

because they won't have that court of appeals ruling to rely on
anynore."

CHAIR SEATON reiterated that the halibut-related clains are
probably fairly limted because nost people fish in both state
and federal [waters]. He said the bigger question is that if
CFEC doesn't have authority to issue these [permts] unless
there is a pending limted entry in a fishery, there' d be no way
to track biological data and wouldn't be any fish tickets;
sonething like a gear card would have to be instituted again in
order to have a fish-ticket tracking system

Nunmber 2904
CHAI R SEATON cl osed the public hearing.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG said he'd been weighing the testinony to see
whet her retroactivity would do nore or less harm and thinks
there' d be | ess harm because of "what could be out there."

Nunber 2922

REPRESENTATI VE OGG noved to adopt [Anmendnent 1], to add a new
Section 2 after line 12 that nmakes the bill retroactive to
January 1, 1974. A newy renunbered Section 3 would say that
the Act takes effect imedi ately.

Nunber 2987
REPRESENTATI VE GARA announced that he opposed nmaking the bill

retroactive for tw reasons, although he clarified that it
wasn't the nost inportant thing in the world to him He

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -14- March 1, 2004



suggested the need to get out of the habit of having bills that
affect pending litigation be nmade retroactive.

TAPE 04-13, SIDE B
Nunmber 2998

REPRESENTATI VE  GARA explained that he isn't particularly
synpathetic to the <class action clainms, and even if the
commttee does nothing about retroactivity, he suspects that the

courts mght be skeptical also. He said he doesn't like the
idea of the [legislature's] taking sides, even if well
notivated, but also doesn't think it wll anpunt to anything,

since it is the court's duty to decide what the |egislature
intended by the 1974 law. He surmised that the court would give
no weight to what a legislature says 30 years later about a
previous legislature's intent. He suggested the better argunent
is the one he's heard that the state will take in these cases,
but reiterated that the courts are there to make that call.
Saying it looks unseemy and won't amount to a hill of beans
anyway, he spoke against adopting a retroactivity provision, and
for just letting these cases proceed.

Nunmber 2886

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG agreed with both Representative Ogg
and Representative G@Gra. He said although this appears to
val i date what has been done for 30 years, he doesn't know the
1974 legislature's intent. He said it seens the state also has
an inherent interest in collecting biological information, and
if the federal government doesn't do it, it seenms there would be
a constitutional requirenent to manage the fisheries by
col l ecting that data.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON said she, too, was pulled in both
directions, but would ask the departnent what it wanted.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said she feels the sanme way, but unlike
Representative Gara, doesn't see this as [the |egislature's]
t aki ng si des. She sees this as clarification, she said, but
acknowl edged the argunent against the ability to clarify what
happened 30 years ago. She expressed the need for direction on
Amendnent 1.

Number 2780

CHAIR SEATON remarked that he is generally opposed to
retroactive clauses when changing the |law, but doesn't believe

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -15- March 1, 2004



that's what is being done here, since it says that what the
state has been doing in managing the fisheries, collecting the
bi ol ogi cal data, and requiring this card in place of a gear card
is the logical extension of what needs to be done to nmanage the

fisheries. He surmsed that what is done here won't inpact
either of the court cases, which are specific: one involves
people who failed to get a permt, which this bill doesn't

cover, and the other relates to a specific federal fishery that
has a dual - managenent schene.

CHAIR SEATON said he does see a problem however, if the
question arises about whether the state has the ability to issue
any permt for a fishery that's not limted or that has an
application [pending] for limtation; that has huge consequences
with regard to the state's ability to manage the fisheries,
because there is no system or permtting availability. Chai r
Seaton said he is leaning towards the retroactive clause, which
will establish "not only that we want to go forward, but that we
agree that collecting our biological data and nmanaging our

fisheries as we do, with a limted entry interimuse permt
system is the right and proper thing that we need to do for our
fisheries.” He specified that he'd support Amendnent 1 for that

reason, not for anything to do with the pending court cases, and
agreed with Representative Gara that the courts wouldn't [|isten,
or at least listen very hard, in those cases.

Number 2660

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON concurr ed. She estimated that under the
class action suit, the nost any fisherman could get back - if
$150 had been paid for seven years - would be a little nore than
$1,000. She suggested the attorneys and not the fishernen would
benefit from that. She proposed the need to |look at this wth
regard to the best way to clarify this and to possibly help [in
the pending court cases], as M. Goltz had said. She concl uded
that she woul d vote for Amendment 1.

Number 2607

REPRESENTATI VE GARA pointed out that passage of the bill wthout
a retroactivity provision gives CFEC the power to issue the
necessary permts, and it can use all the fisheries data from
t he past. The only question in deciding whether to make it
retroactive is whether to have the chance to inpact the pending
litigation, he said, reiterating that he doesn't believe it wll
have any i npact or should do so.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -16- March 1, 2004



CHAIR SEATON clarified that his point isn't the pending
litigation with regard to halibut, but the possibility that
rei mbursenent will be sought as well from [participants] in all
other fisheries across the state that had an interimuse permt
that wasn't associated with pending limted entry; those cases
aren't currently before the court in any way.

REPRESENTATI VE HEI NZE said she was trying to figure out the
reason for going ahead with the bill wthout an anmendnent
providing retroactivity.

MR. HOVAN agreed this clarifies that this upholds a practice

that CFEC has been using for 30 years. If it stands as the
court of appeals has read the statute, [CFEC] couldn't issue
|UPs to any fishery it didn't limt. He concurred with Chair

Seaton that the potential would exist for all those fisheries
that [CFEC] hasn't |limted, or may never |limt, to have a claim

CHAI R HElI NZE sai d she'd support [Amendnent 1].

[Chair Seaton explained Amendnent 1 to Representative Samnuels,
who had just returned.]

Number 2428

CHAIR SEATON referred to coments nade earlier by M. Goltz
about possi bl e additional | anguage. He asked whether
Representative (Ogg just wanted Amendnent 1 to say it's
retroactive to that date or to include other |anguage.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG offered his inpression that M. CGoltz wasn't
asking for additional |anguage, but that the retroactive clause
would allow himto argue those points. Representative Ogg added
that he'd hesitate to say what the suprene court would rule; he
noted that M. Goltz had indicated he didn't know, either, but
had said this wouldn't hurt his argunent and [nmay] help.

REPRESENTATI VE OGG went on to say he thinks it is a proper power

of the legislature - although it should be used sparingly - to
make a decision in these matters when it finds sonething is
unclear, and will wite a statute [counter to] a ruling made by
a court that the legislature finds abhorrent, for exanple. He

suggested this is a sparing use, to ensure that what has been
done over nany years i S proper.

Nunber 2291

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -17- March 1, 2004



MR, GOLTZ, in reply to a question from Chair Seaton, said he
doesn't think additional |anguage is necessary, and that the
retroactive date is sufficient and would go a long way to neke
the point that the intention of the anmendnent is to be
consistent with the way the | aw has been intended all al ong.

Nunber 2221

REPRESENTATI VE OGG requested that the foregoing statenents by
M. Goltz be included in the record to support why Anendnent 1
is being added. He enphasized M. oltz's statement that the
intention isn't to change the law, but to clarify what was
al ways there.

REPRESENTATI VE GARA nuai nt ai ned his objection to Anendnent 1.

A roll call vote was taken. Representati ves Heinze, Sanuels,
Qgg, Qut t enber g, W son, and Seaton voted in favor of
Amendrent 1. Representative Gara voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amendnent 1 was adopted by a vote of 6-1.
Number 2151

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG asked whether there is an inherent
problem in using the word "interim, since the state has the
ability to issue a permt in any fishery.

MR HOVAN replied that he doesn't see it as a problem
Initially, when the permts were established, the entry permt
was for those that were limted, and the [interimuse permt]
was for those that weren't; over the years, that's been the
pattern. He said he supposed it could be read as being "on the
way to do sonething else,” but it has always been the practice
that "interin covered everything other than the entry permt.

REPRESENTATI VE GUTTENBERG said he wondered whether the pending
| awsuits are because people thought this was an interim use for
sonmething that hadn't happened. Remarking that the state
certainly has a right and an obligation to have permts, he
suggested perhaps M. Goltz could address that better.

CHAIR SEATON pointed out that in this case it's different
because of the dual-permtting system for halibut. He
el abor at ed:

That's specifically what this is addressing, ... not
an interim nature. Interimuse permts are used in

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 18- March 1, 2004



two ways. One is if you have a limted entry system
and people are qualifying by nunber of points and
there's appeals; they're given those interimuse
[permts] wuntil there's a final determnation as to
whet her they qualified for ... a limted entry permt.
And then they're also used for all other fisheries for
which there has not been the determnation ... for
going to a limted entry system So ... | can see
there's a little confusion, but they' ve been used this
way all al ong.

Number 2013
MR. HOVAN added:

W al ways have | ooked at the interimuse permt as the
permt that was issued before you decided whether

there was going to be a I|imtation or not a
limtation. So ... it could be used for quite a
nunber of years because ... you nmy never nake that
decision; ... if a fishery doesn't look like it needs
to be limted, then ... the interimuse permt .
will stay out there. ... You could read it to be that
way, as well, that ... interimuse permts are there
because no decision has been made on that fishery;

it remains open until you limt it. So ... if you
never limt it, then the interimuse designation stays
t here.

CHAI R SEATON requested confirmation of his understanding that in
CFEC s view, these other fisheries are all really pending as
being available for Ilimted entry, even though there's no
application for limted entry; thus it's under that kind of
jurisdiction that the interimuse permt is being offered.

MR. HOVAN replied that the conm ssion has the authority to limt
any fishery if the conditions warrant it. But w thout that
limtation, that designation stays on those fisheries as
"interimuse."

Number 1890
REPRESENTATI VE OGG nobved to report HB 478, as anended, out of
commttee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying

zero fiscal note. There being no objection, CSHB 478(FSH) was
reported fromthe House Special Conmttee on Fisheries.

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE -19- March 1, 2004



Nunber 1852

CHAI R SEATON briefly turned attention to HB 415. He reported
that he'd contacted the chair of the Board of Fisheries about
the tineframe for addressing the issues in HB 415, either on a
regional or statewide basis; he indicated the board would get
back with the commttee this week on that. He al so noted that
[ St ephen White of the Departnment of Law] wll be providing a
| egal opinion this week.

Number 1803

REPRESENTATI VE GARA asked M. Goltz to provide his office with
the supreme court opinion, if one is issued ultimtely, relating
to the legislature's statenent of intent [in HB 478] as to what
the 1974 |egislature neant. He suggested it would be good to
start developing data on the inpact of these retroactivity
cl auses and how the suprene court views them

MR, GOLTZ agreed to do that.

CHAI R SEATON asked that the information be provided to all the
commttee nenbers. [CSHB 478(FSH) was reported fromconmmttee.]

ADJ QURNVENT
Nunber 1747
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Speci al Commttee on Fisheries neeting was adjourned at
10:17 a.m

HOUSE FSH COW TTEE - 20- March 1, 2004



